
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
June 2, 2011, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 5, 2011 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 


 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 2


 
D. Approval of Construction Warrants and PERS Side Fund payment 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re FY 2010-11 3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations 


and Capital Expenditures, and County Balances (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Review and Revision of District Policies & Procedures 


Section 2000 (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Resolution 11-14, Expressing Appreciation for the Services 


of Wanda Smith as Board Member 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Replacement of Board Member Wanda Smith 
 
E. Discussion/Action re New Approach for Consideration of Other Agencies’ 


Election Packets 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 10 min.) 
 
 A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957- Public Employee 


 Performance Evaluation 
 Title: Legal counsel  


 
 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
May 5, 2011 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Wanda Smith 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna, District Counsel 
      Wendell Joost 
      Karen Risore 
      Terry Milko 
      Chris Hanley 
      Tom Tally 
      Charlene Cannon 
      Gina Michaletti 
      Danny Demers 
      Richard Thomas 
      Elizabeth Demers 
      Lloyd Guccione 
      Nhu Le 
      David Matt 
      Steve Williams 
      Michael Hughes 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:32 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:33 


p.m.) 
 
Director Smith moved to adjourn to the Monte Rio Community Center for lack of seating.  Public 
comment was made by (unidentified speakers).  Comments were made by District Counsel Mike 


 1







Gogna.  Discussion ensued.  Public comments were made by (unidentified speakers).  No action 
was taken. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:40 p.m.) 
 
Director Smith moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Robb-Wilder 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 7, 2011 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/ Online payments/EFT payments/ Construction 


Warrants 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence 
 
 (1) E-mail dated May 3, 2011 from Brian Praxis, PRAXIS Architects, for 


Monte Rio Recreation and Park Department 
 


 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:41 p.m.) 


 
Public comment was made by Terry Milko. 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:42 p.m.) 


A. (6:42 p.m.) Public hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 11-08, Adopting Water 
Rates for Fiscal Year 11-12 and Analysis of protests received.  Director Smith made 
a motion to open up this item and continue it to the next Board meeting.  Discussion 
ensued.  Director Smith amended her motion to continue on and schedule a Special 
Meeting at least two weeks away.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


 The GM made a PowerPoint presentation.  Board questions ensued.  President Quigley 
opened the Public Hearing at 7:12 p.m.  Public comment was made by the following 
people: 


 
 David Matt 
 Wendell Joost 
 Karen Risore 
 Terry Milko 
 Tom Tally 
 Charlene Cannon 
 Gina Michaletti 
 Danny Demers 
 Nhu Le 
 Lloyd Guccione 
 Richard Thomas 
 
 Board discussion ensued.  Further public comment was made by the following people: 
 
 David Wells 
 Danny Demers 
 Charlene Cannon 
 Terry Milko 
 Chris Hanley 
 
 District counsel Mike Gogna provided comments regarding oral protests.   
 


 2







 Oral protests were made by Charlene Cannon (14793 Canyon 4), and Elizabeth Demers 
(15240 Canyon 3). 


 
 Board discussion ensued.  President Quigley suspended further public comment to take 


a poll of the Board.  Discussion ensued.  At 8:13 pm, President Quigley closed the Public 
Hearing.  Further Board Discussion ensued.  Director Wikle moved to adopt Resolution 
11-08, Adopting Water Rates for Fiscal Year 2011-2012.  Director Robb-Wilder 
seconded.  Motion carried 4-0, with Director Smith abstaining. 


 
*** At 8:25 p.m., President Quigley called a 5-minute recess.  The meeting resumed at 8:32 
p.m. 
 
Upon brief discussion, the Board agreed to postpone the following administrative matters to 
another meeting at a later date: 
 
 C. Discussion/Action re FY 2010-11  3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations 


and Capital Expenditures, and County Balances 
 
 E. Discussion/Action re District’s Protest to SCWA Petition Requesting Modification 


to water Rights Permit by Modifying the Instream Flow Requirements on Permits 
12947A, 12949, 12950 and 19596. 


 
 F. Discussion/Action re Review and Revision of District Policies & Procedures 


Section 2000 


B. (8:32 p.m.) Public hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 11-10, Adopting the FY 
2011-12 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget.  The GM provided an overview 
of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve 
Resolution 11-10, Adopting the FY 2011-12 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget.  
Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


D. (8:43 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 11-11, Approving the Construction 
Project Budget and Authorizing the Award of Contract for the FY 2012 CIP to Kat 
Construction in the Sum of $1,067,095 and Authorizing the General Manager Total 
Change Order Approval up to $106,710 and Single Change Order Approval up to 
$25,000.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Public comment was made by 
Steve Williams.  Public comment was made by Michael Hughes.  Comments were made 
by District counsel Mike Gogna.  Discussion ensued.  Additional comments were made 
by the GM and by Mike Gogna.  Further discussion ensued.  Additional comments were 
made by Mike Gogna.  Director Schaap moved to approve Resolution 11-11, Approving 
the Construction Project Budget and Authorizing the Award of Contract for the FY 2012 
Capital Improvement Project to Kat Construction in the Sum of $1,067,095, and 
Authorizing the General Manager Total Change Order Approval of $106,710 and Single 
Change Order Approval up to $25,000.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 
3-1-1, with Director Smith voting “no” and Director Wikle abstaining from the vote. 


G. (9:17 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 11-12, Authorizing an Amendment to 
the (PERS) Contract.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Director Wikle moved 
to approve Resolution 11-12, Authorizing an Amendment to the (PERS) Contract.  
Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  


H. (9:20 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 11-13, Approving a Office/Warehouse 
Lease with Ferrellgas.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion 
ensued.  Director Wikle moved to approve Resolution 11-13, Authorizing the General 
Manager to Execute Lease Addendum No. 2 with Ferrellgas for Rental of District Office 
and Warehouse Space.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 3







 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:28 p.m.) 
 
Due to the late hour, no oral report was given to supplement the Board packet materials, which 
discussed the following matters: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Rainfall 
5. CIP IV-B, Project 1 
6. CIP IV-B, Project 2 
7. 2012 CIP 
8. Toilet Rebate Program 
9. In-House Construction Projects 
10. Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) 
11. Gantt Chart 
12. Vacation 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(9:28 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Robb-Wilder announced that she would be out of the country from May 22 to June 


8, 2011. 
2. Director Smith announced that she would be moving out of the District and resigning from 


the Board.  She then made a closing statement.   
  
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:37 p.m.) 
 
At 9:37 p.m. President Quigley announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  Brief 
discussion ensued.  At 9:45 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9:57 p.m. the meeting 
reconvened and the following actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Public Employee Performance 
Evaluation 


  Title: Legal counsel 
  No action was taken 
 


B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation 
pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 


  Title: General Manager 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:58 p.m.) 
 
1. 3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted report 
2. District Policies and Procedures, Section 2000 
3. (3) Notices of Completion for District CIP projects 
4. Replacement Board member 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 


 4







 5


The meeting adjourned at 10 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:33 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:40 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:41 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:42 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:28 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(9:28 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:37 p.m.)

		A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Public Employee Performance Evaluation

		B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:58 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : June 2, 2011  
 
Subject:  APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION WARRANTS and PERS SIDE 
FUND PAYOFF    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Approve warrants.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $230,511 for the CalPERS Side Fund payoff, plus the Construction 
warrants 


 
DISCUSSION:   
 
In addition to the Construction Warrants, included is a warrant request for the CalPERS 
Side Fund payoff in the sum of $230,511.  We’ve discussed paying off our Side Fund 
over the past few months.  The payoff amount is based on final paperwork for the 
payoff received from Barbara Ware, our actuary at CalPERS.  Staff originally estimated 
the payoff amount to be $240,000 – the actual amount is $9,489 less. 
 
The impact of the Side Fund payoff on the Employer Share of our FY 2011-12 CalPERS 
retirement costs is summarized below: 
 
 Projected Employer Share before 2% @ 55 Plan Amendment: 8.623% of base wages 
 
 Projected Employer Share after 2% @ 55 Plan Amendment:  11.966% of base wages 
 
 Employer Share after 2% @ 55 Plan Amendment and 
   Side Fund payoff:       9.539% of base wages 
 
As has been discussed at previous meetings, in future years beyond FY 2011-12, the 
Employer Share fluctuates from year to year depending on how CalPERS investments 
perform.  In addition to the Employer Share, the District also pays the level 7% 
Employee Share of retirement costs in lieu of paying into Social Security. 





		Meeting Date : June 2, 2011 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 2, 2011 
  
Subject: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU MARCH 31, 
2011 (75%) 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 3rd quarter actual revenues and expenses.  This comprises 75% of 
the year by time and so we compare the revenues and expenses to that standard. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
3Q Revenue is greater than 75% of budgeted amount.   
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, are at 77.2% of the budgeted amount.   
 
This is a good indication that our annual Water Sales figure will be right on target with 
budgeted amounts.  Of interest, though it hasn’t had a major impact on water sales, the 
actual amount of water sold is about 4.5% less than last year’s sales as of March 31.  Our 
customers are conserving. 
 
Also on the revenue side, the District received reimbursement from SCWA in the sum of 
$10,608 as part of our Agreement with them to be members of CUWCC.  This revenue is 
offset by the membership costs (6280) of CUWCC and by toilet rebates given.  The District 
also received claim reimbursement from SDRMA in the sum of $6,975 (recorded as 
Miscellaneous Income (4040)) for storm damage to District lines near the Crespo Tank and 
Santa Rosa Booster Station.  This revenue is offset largely by overtime costs (5912) incurred 
to fix the damage, which occurred over a weekend. 
 
3Q Expenditures are less than 75% of budgeted amount. 
 
3Q expenditures are 72.6% of budgeted amounts.     







Actual vs, Budgeted Thru March 31, 2011 2 
June 2, 2011 


 
Two of the District’s largest operations expenses (other than salaries and benefits which are 
slightly underbudget) are underbudget.  Distribution System Repairs (6180) was slightly 
above budget last quarter, but as of the end of 3Q is now just 61.52% of its $64,000 budget.  
Similarly, the Treatment System/Well Repairs line item (6235) remains well underbudget at 
14% of its $56,000 budget.   
 
Another large line item to keep an eye on is electricity (7320) and propane (7321), budgeted 
at $96,000, the same as last year.  Last quarter, we were overbudget on this line item by 
7.72%.  As of the 3Q, that amount has narrowed to 2.6% overbudget.  As noted last quarter, 
District’s electricity costs are driven by the amount of water sold: more water sold means 
more pumping necessary, which requires more electricity.  This year, despite less water sold 
as of the same date last year, our electricity costs are slightly higher.   
 
Finally, District non-CIP related engineering costs (6590) are overbudget.  Not included in 
the $1,000 budget for this line item, the District contracted with Brelje & Race to provide 
updated maps of the District’s facilities and improvements.  Through April over $9,000 has 
been spent on this item. 
 
For more detail on all the budget line items, please refer to the attached Actual vs. Budgeted 
breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 3Q Capital Budget is not in balance because revenues won’t come in until later in the 
year and because of carryover revenue and expenses from the prior year and loan 
repayment expenses occurred during the first half of the fiscal year.   
 
Revenue from the annual assessment is over 50% (same as 2Q); the Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge (CDRC) transfers won’t be happening until later in the fiscal year; 
transfers to CIRF and In-house Construction have happened.  We have major revenues 
and expenses related to CIP IV-B, Project 1, which were unbudgeted for FY11 but are 
budgeted carryovers from FY10.      
 
At the 3Q  the GO Bonds, State Loans, and Private Placement Loan are fully paid for the 
year.  We have had major expenses for CIP IV-B, Projects 1 and 2, funding for which are 
assisted by a 75% CDC/RRROC grant.  Design expenses for the 2012 CIP show up in 
the 3Q.    
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY AND AT REDWOOD CREDIT UNION 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 3rd Quarter 
balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 3rd Quarter.   
 
Table 3 shows the District’s Funds are following the Budget direction at the end of the 3rd 
Quarter.  District Reserves are higher than budgeted at the 3rd Quarter mark because 
construction costs have not been fully reimbursed.  These totals will always lag while the 
District has ongoing large capital projects.   
   







Actual vs, Budgeted Thru March 31, 2011 3 
June 2, 2011 


FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 10-11 FY 10-11
Actual 1st 


Quarter
Actual 2st 


Quarter
Actual 3rdt 


Quarter Budget


Operating Balance 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 -                 
Budget Reserve (10% of Operating Exp) 158,788 158,788 158,788 158,788 -                 
Economic Reserve (15% of Operating Exp) 238,182 238,182 238,182 238,182 -                 
Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 238,182 238,182 238,182 238,182 -                 
Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 -                 


Total District Policy 1,085,152 1,085,152 1,085,152 1,085,152 -                 


TOTAL Reserves EOY or EOQ 4,188,394 4,886,844 5,006,025 3,761,127 1,125,717      
Difference because of ongoing 
capital expenses 


Reserves Above (below) Policy 3,103,242 3,801,692 3,920,873 2,675,975 1,244,898      


DISTRICT FUNDS


CIRF 2,786,264 3,130,915 3,327,208 2,334,572 992,636         
 Higher because of PPL 
expenditures


OPERATING RESERVE 324,970 324,970 396,970 396,970 -                 Balanced to Reserve Policy


OPERATIONS 343,880 620,651 432,316 200,000 232,316         
Still needs balancing to Reserve 
Policy, should be ~$200,000


CD 609,697 617,316 624,861 631,978 (7,117)             Interest on track
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 106,757 102,142 118,820 91,757 27,063           
BUILDING 90,850 90,850 105,850 105,850 -                 


4,188,394 4,886,844 5,006,025 4,526,687 479,338         


Table 3.  FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


Difference 
Actual-FY11 


Budget Comments
DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


765,560
 Private Placement Loan 
balance is spent(765,560)        


District Policy Reserves


DISTRICT LOANS


Total Funds Available (sum of Total Reserves EOY 
-74,024 0 0Private Placement Loan


 







FY 2010-11 
Actual


2010-11 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.1. 2· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 175,814 227,000 -51,186 77.45%  
4031.1 · Daily Water Sales Deposits 1,366,909 1,770,000 -403,091 77.23%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 1,542,723 1,997,000 -454,277 77.25% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,542,723 1,997,000 -454,277 77.25%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE
4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 0.0%  
1700 · Interest 27,654 40,000 -12,346 69.14% Reflects interest earnings thru 3Q *
3600 · Construction New Services 2,576 5,000 -2,424 51.51%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 100 2,000 -1,900 5.0%
4032 · Rent 49,664 70,000 -20,336 70.95%  


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 10,608 0 10,608 100.0%
Received in the 3Q, offset in part by Toilet 
Rebates (part of Water Sales), and 
CUWCC membership costs *


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 11,404 2,200 9,204 518.35%
Includes SDRMA claim reimbursement of 
$6,975.84 in the 3Q, offset largely by 
overtime *


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 102,006 119,200 -17,194 85.58%


Total Income 1,644,728 2,116,200 -471,472 77.72%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 506,911 702,200 -195,289 72.19%
5912 · Overtime 23,954 33,000 -9,046 72.59% See, Misc. income comments above *
5916 · On-Call Pay 19,565 26,500 -6,935 73.83%
5918 · Extra help - Contract 26,499 33,500 -7,001 79.1%  


Total Salary 576,929 795,200 -218,271 72.55%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monie 3,900 0 3,900 100.0%
5920 · Retirement 71,760 98,600 -26,840 72.78%
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 11,380 14,300 -2,920 79.58%
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 86,970 116,000 -29,030 74.97%
5931 · Retiree Health 1,908 0 1,908 100.0%  


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 24,403 27,700 -3,297 88.1% Includes 1st, 2nd 3rd, and 4th quarter 
premiums. *


Total Benefits 200,322 256,600 -56,278 78.07%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 777,250 1,051,800 -274,550 73.9%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 1,150 1,800 -650 63.9%
6040-C · Cell Phones 2,445 3,100 -655 78.86%
6040-LD · Long Distance 352 700 -348 50.29%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 797 900 -103 88.59%
6040-S · SCADA software maint. 456 500 -44 91.27%
6040-T · Telephones 9,721 13,800 -4,079 70.44%


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2010-11 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2011 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 4







FY 2010-11 
Actual


2010-11 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2010-11 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2011 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Total Communications 14,922 20,800 -5,878 71.74%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 30,757  40,000 -9,243 76.89%
Overbudgeted.  Premium was refunded in 
September to reduce our limits to be the 
same as last year's.  


6102 · Auto/Equipment 8,172  10,500 -2,328 77.83%
Overbudgeted.  Premium was refunded in 
September to reduce our limits to be the 
same as last year's.  


Total Insurances 38,929 50,500 -11,571 77.09%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles
6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 9,806 12,000 -2,194 81.72%  
6151 · Office Maintenance 5,576 4,800 776 116.16%


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 15,382 16,800 -1,418 91.56%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 5,202 7,100 -1,898 73.27%


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 39,370 64,000 -24,630 61.52%
In the 2Q, $11,829.50 (budgeted at 
$14,000) was spent to video the tanks and 
removed sediment where needed.


 


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 7,876 56,000 -48,124 14.06%


In the 2Q, we appear to be underbudget, 
but the budget for this this line item 
includes $14,000 for predicted  repairs that 
haven't been necessary as of the end of the 
2Q


 
6143 · Generator Maintenance 1,336 1,200 136 111.36%  


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 53,784 128,300 -74,516 41.92%


Miscellaneous Expenses
6280 · Memberships 8,260 5,200 3,060 158.85% See, Misc. income comments above *
6303 · Claims 3,445 1,500 1,945 229.68%  


6593 · Governmental Fees 15,835 21,700 -5,865 72.97%


1Q expense includes water system fees, 
paid twice yearly, and annual LAFCO costs.
$4,000 was budgeted for election costs, 
which we will not have to pay this year 
because we won't need a Board election.


 
Total Miscellaneous Expenses 27,540 28,400 -860 96.97%


Office Expense
6410 · Postage 13,202 15,000 -1,798 88.01%


6430 · Printing Expense 6,153 6,500 -347 94.67% Bills and envelopes are purchased in yearly 
quantities.  


6461 · Office Supplies 3,321 6,500 -3,179 51.09%
6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 711 1,000 -289 71.08%


6890 · Computers/Software 1,705 1,700 5 100.31%
In the 1Q, a (budgeted) computer was 
purchased ($900)


6579 · Furniture 0 500 -500 0.0%
Total Office Expense 25,092 31,200 -6,108 80.42%


Operating Supplies


6300 · Chemicals 14,883 16,000 -1,117 93.02% In the 1Q, chemicals were largely 
purchased in yearly quantities


6880 · Tools and Equipment 3,944 6,000 -2,056 65.74%
6881 · Safety Equipment 1,561 1,800 -239 86.71%


 Page 2 of 4







FY 2010-11 
Actual


2010-11 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2010-11 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2011 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Total Operating Supplies 20,388 23,800 -3,412 85.66%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 2,044 2,600 -556 78.61%  


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees
8,349 9,000 -651 92.76% In the 1Q, costs include tests that only need


to be done annually.  
6570 · Consultant Fees 11,270 20,000 -8,730 56.35%


6590 · Engineering 5,981 1,000 4,981 598.09%


Underbudgeted.  1Q general engineering 
fees are for system maps.  It is anticipated 
that a total of $4,000 will be spent updating 
maps this fiscal year.  However, actual 
mapping costs are $9000+ thru 4/18


*


6592 · Engineering for Fife Creek Commons 1,747 0 1,747 100.0%


These are 2Q expenses incurred for the 
Burbank housing project in downtown 
Guerneville.  We will be reimbursed for 
these costs.


 
6610 · Legal 8,889 22,000 -13,111 40.41%
6630 · Audit/Accounting 17,581 22,000 -4,419 79.91%  


Total Professional Services 55,860 76,600 -20,740 72.92%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 0 3,500 -3,500 0.0%
6840 · Building & Warehouse 22,500 27,000 -4,500 83.33%   


Total Rents & Leases 22,500 30,500 -8,000 73.77%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 1,277 4,000 -2,723 31.92%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 17,003 20,000 -2,997 85.02%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 4,166 6,400 -2,234 65.1%


Total Transportation & Travel 22,446 30,400 -7,954 73.84%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 553 1,330 -777 41.55%
6021.3 · T-shirts 916 1,200 -284 76.35% T-shirts are purchased once yearly
6021.4 · Jackets 0 250 -250 0.0%


Total Uniforms 1,469 2,780 -1,311 52.84%


Utilities
7320 · Electricity 71,678 96,000 -24,322 74.67%  


7321 · Propane 2,804 0 2,804 100.0% This line item was broken out from 
electricity during the 3rd Q *


Total Utilities 74,482 96,000 -21,518 77.59%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 372,794 536,080 -163,286 69.54%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,150,044 1,587,880 -437,836 72.43%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 3,823 0 3,823 100.0% In the 1Q, $3,823 was spent to rehab the 
driveway to the Villa Grande tank.


8517 · Field/office equipment 0 1,050 -1,050 0.0%  
8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 3,823 1,050 2,773 364.05%


Total Expense 1,153,867 1,588,930 -435,063 72.62%


 Page 3 of 4







FY 2010-11 
Actual


2010-11 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2010-11 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2011 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Net Ordinary Income 490,862 527,270 -36,408 93.1%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 0 227,000 -227,000 0.0%
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 0 240,000 -240,000 0.0%
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 0 15,000 -15,000 0.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 0 25,000 -25,000 0.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 0 507,000 -507,000 0.0%


 Page 4 of 4







 Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2010-11 Capital Program Budget Variances as of March  31, 2010 (75%)


FY 10-11
ACTUAL 


(3Q)
FY 10-11
BUDGET


% of 
Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 58,963 27,000 218.4% Includes $50,830 for Fife Creek Commons
Annual Assessment (County) 385,355 710,000 54.3%
Prior Year Assessment 34,703 40,000 86.8%
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 227,000 0.0%
Interest 17,904 60,000 29.8% off considerably
CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 1 543,654 541,724 100.4%
CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 2 651,669 1,065,000 61.2% FY11 CIP


550,249    
440,000


125.1%
End of PPL


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 240,000 240,000 100.0% End of year transfer


25,000 25,000 100.0% End of year transfer


TOTAL REVENUE 2,507,498 3,375,724 74.3%


EXPENSES
Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 684,205 687,000 99.6%
State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 99.9%
Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014 100.0% 1 of 2 payments made
CIP III 85,000 85,000 100.0% Settlement payment


CIP IV-B, Project 1 CIP 2010 724,811 722,298     NA
FY 10 carryover, construction started in 
May, near completion


CIP IV-B, Project 2 CIP 2011 868,593 1,475,000 58.9% construction started in July 10


CIP 2012 52,440 1,264,532  NA
Total design costs = $61,000, 
construction starts in June 11, 


In-House Construction Projects 16,028 40,000 40.1%


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,835,262 4,678,144 60.6%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT -327,765  -1,302,420 25.2%


Major difference from Actual to Budget 
due to Project 1 carryover into FY 11


Private Placement Funding (CIP IV-B)


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations







 


(from "Trial Balance by Project" Report (FAMIS 017))


$343,880.43 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $688,000.00 $109,847.61 $0.00 $2,886,863.46 $ 24,968.95 $24,750.00 $148,548.98 $146,619.86 $678,345.94 $5,467,645.23


 (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)


NAME


CD at 
Redwood 


Cred U


Operations Bldg Fund Reserves Federal Loan In-house 
Construction


Federal 
Construction


Capital 
Improvement 


Revenue


State Loan 
#58330


State Loan 
#58830 
Reserve


State Loan 
58340


State Loan 
58340 Reserve


Private 
Placement 
Funding


INDEX 776013 776021 776039 776203 776211 776302 776401 776500 776518 776609 776617 776708


PROJECT 001 002 003 200 210 300 400 500 510 600 610 700


FP1-Jul 602,172.72 $343,880.43 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $688,000.00 $109,847.61 $0.00 $2,684,856.86 $24,968.95 $24,750.00 $148,548.98 $146,619.86 $550,249.35 $5,137,542.04


FP2-Aug 602,172.72 $343,880.43 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $237,312.32 $108,608.06 $0.00 $2,783,888.40 $24,968.95 $24,750.00 $148,548.98 $146,619.86 $418,507.30 $4,652,904.30


FP3-Sept 609,697.25 $343,880.43 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $237,312.32 $106,757.22 $0.00 $2,786,264.40 $13,191.98 $24,750.00 $75,239.97 $146,619.86 ($74,023.70) $4,075,812.48


FP4-Oct 609,697.25 $465,650.63 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $237,312.32 $104,077.29 $0.00 $2,496,171.24 $13,191.98 $24,750.00 $75,239.97 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,978,833.29


FP5-Nov 609,697.25 $525,650.63 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $237,312.32 $102,142.29 $0.00 $2,783,420.76 $13,191.98 $24,750.00 $75,239.97 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,324,147.81


FP6-Dec 617,315.80 $620,650.63 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $237,312.32 $102,142.29 $0.00 $3,130,915.49 $13,191.98 $24,750.00 $75,239.97 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,766,642.54


FP7-Jan 617,315.80 $622,315.68 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $237,312.32 $97,935.32 $0.00 $3,218,863.07 $13,191.98 $24,750.00 $75,239.97 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,852,048.20


FP8-Feb 617,315.80 $712,315.68 $90,850.00 $324,970.00 $3,794.64 $94,557.60 $0.00 $3,175,569.53 $13,191.98 $24,750.00 $75,239.97 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,661,859.26


FP9-Mar 624,861.16 $432,315.68 $105,850.00 $396,970.00 $3,794.64 $118,820.10 $0.00 $3,327,208.23 $1,415.01 $24,750.00 $1,930.96 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,559,674.48


FP10-Apr 624,861.16 $493,387.95 $105,850.00 $396,970.00 $3,794.64 $116,447.88 $0.00 $3,614,785.72 $1,415.01 $24,750.00 $1,930.96 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,905,952.02


FP11-May  $0.00


FP12-Jun  $0.00


FP 13 
(FINAL)


 $0.00


            
Balance does not 


reflect June 
construction checks


$0.00


Beginning balances per FAMIS:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from GL101 until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


 





		Item V-A - Actual v Budgeted - 3Q 2010-11

		Item V-A.1 - Budget variances as of 03-31-2011 (75%)

		Sheet1 (2)



		Item V-A.2  - Budget Variances - Cap Imp - FY 10-11 3Q

		FY11



		Item V-A.3 - County Acctg Indices FY 10-11

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00








 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: June 2, 2011  
 
Subject:  REVISION OF SECTION 2000 OF DISTRICT POLICIES AND 
PROCEDURES LEAVE POLICIES  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the review and revision of 
Section 2000 of the District’s Policies and Procedures focusing on Sections 2040 
through Sections 2050.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
For the past several months District staff have been working on revising Section 2000 of the 
District’s Policies and Procedures with the intent of developing an ordinance that will 
incorporate those changes.  You were given a draft proposed Section 2000 to review at the 
March Board meeting, but the section dealing with leave policies (§§ 2040-2050) needed 
additional staff and legal review.  Before revising the leave sections, staff needs some Board 
policy direction on the following: 
 
1. How do you want to define “domestic partner” in our leave policies? 
2. Do you want to voluntarily bind the District to the Family Medical Leave Act?  
3. Do you want to include a personal, unpaid, non-medical leave in the policies? 
 
Domestic partners.  Currently, our policies do not define who is a domestic partner, but 
there are many references to the term.  The State definition of domestic partner is limited to 
same sex partnerships unless “one or both persons are over the age of 62.”  Also, there 
must be a Declaration of Domestic Partnership filed with the Secretary of State.  This is the 
definition followed by CalPERS for both health and retirement benefits.  Does the Board want 
to use this definition, or expand it for purposes of District leave policies to include opposite 
sex partners?  Since we understand opposite sex partners cannot not file a Declaration of 
Domestic Partnership with the State, if you want to include opposite sex partners do you 
want to establish any standards?  Either way, staff recommends that “domestic partner” be 
defined in our policies. 
 
Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA).  Currently, our policies make reference to the FMLA 
(Section 2050.30).  FMLA is federal law providing for continuation of health coverage and job 
protection for employees who take up to 12 work weeks of leave in a 12-month period to 
care for themselves or other specified family members.  Meyers Nave indicates the District is 
not bound to follow FMLA because of our small size (less than 50 employees).  Staff 







REVISION OF SECTION 2000 OF DISTRICT POLICIES AND 
PROCEDURES LEAVE POLICIES  2  
June 2, 2011 
 


 


recommends deleting references to FMLA – we are not legally bound to follow it and the 
spirit of FMLA is covered by other provisions in our policies.  
 
Personal, unpaid non-medical leaves of absence.  Currently, the Policies and Procedures 
refer to personal unpaid leaves tangentially, but don’t actually provide for them.  However, 
the union MOU does have a section for personal leaves.  Staff recommends including a 
personal leave policy similar to the one in the MOU, which would allow employees to request 
a leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days, during which time 
the employee shall contribute 50% of their medical insurance premiums. 
 
There are other, smaller inconsistencies in the leave policies which still need to be reviewed 
by legal counsel.   With general direction from the Board on the issues above we will 
incorporate those recommendations into a revised draft.   
 
 





		Meeting Date: June 2, 2011 






Resolution No. 11-14 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT EXPRESSING 


APPRECIATION FOR THE SERVICES OF  
DIRECTOR WANDA SMITH AS BOARD MEMBER 


 
WHEREAS, Wanda Smith has been an active Board member since December of 2002; and 
 
WHEREAS, Wanda has been an example of service to this community, and has further 


dedicated considerable time and energy to improving the Sweetwater Springs Water District; and 
 
WHEREAS, Wanda has always discharged her duties as Board Member, Financial 


Coordinator, and President of the District in a fair and compassionate manner; and 
 
WHEREAS, Wanda has additionally been actively involved in the review of budgets, the 


water rate restructuring, appearance and content of the District’s website, District Policies and 
Procedures review, and investigated the use of District lands, and otherwise was important in keeping 
a positive, forward-looking spirit at Board meetings; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wish to recognize Wanda for her eight and one half 


years of dedicated service. 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, that: 
 
 1. Wanda Smith be commended for her dedication and commitment to the affairs of the 
District during her tenure as a Board Member, and for the outstanding job she has done during her term as 
a Board Member. 
  
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and regularly 
adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, 
Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on June 2, 2011 by the following vote: 
 
 APPROVED:  Sukey Robb-Wilder     
    Victoria Wikle,                  
    Gaylord Schaap,      
    Jim  Quigley                                           
 
ATTEST:            
  Julie A. Kenny, Clerk of the Board  Stephen Mack, General Manager 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D.   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : June 2, 2011  
 
Subject:  REPLACEMENT OF BOARD MEMBER WANDA SMITH   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive and discuss a report on procedures for replacing 
Board Member Smith.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION:   
 
At the May 5, 2011 meeting Board Member Wanda Smith announced her intention to 
resign because she was shortly moving out of the District.  Board Member Smith 
requested District Legal Counsel, Mike Gogna, to clarify the residency requirements of 
being a Director of the District which he did in a later email to Board Member Smith.  
Subsequently, Board Member Smith sent an email to the General Manager on May 13, 
2011, confirming her resignation.   
 
Government Code Section 1780 provides the framework for replacing a resigning Board 
Member.  Important elements include: 
 


• The District must notify the county elections official of the vacancy no later than 
15 days after either the date on which the district board is notified of the vacancy 
or the effective date of the vacancy, whichever is later.  Since the effective date 
of the vacancy, May 13, 2011, is the same as when the District was formally 
notified, the county elections official must be notified by May 28, 2011, which 
District staff has done.  


 
• The remaining Board Members must make the appointment within 60 days of the 


date the board was notified of the vacancy or effective date of the vacancy, 
whichever is later.  Since May 13 is the effective date, the appointment must be 
made by July 12, 2011, if the Board is to make the appointment. 


 
• The district must post notice of the vacancy in at least three conspicuous places 


within the district at least 15 days before the district board makes the 
appointment.  The district board must notify the county elections official of the 
appointment no later than 15 days after the appointment. 


 
• The code provides that if the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term in office 


but more than 130 days prior to the next general district election (which in 







REPLACEMENT OF BOARD MEMBER WANDA SMITH 2   
June 2, 2011                                                                 


 


this case is in November 2012), the person appointed to fill the vacancy shall 
fill the position until the next general election and thereafter until the person 
elected in that general election is seated on the Board (at the December 
Board Meeting).  The person elected to fill the vacancy shall hold office for the 
unexpired balance of the term of office.   Board Member Smith was just 
reelected in November 2010 and, as such, the appointee would serve until the 
general election of 2012 and the person elected to fill the balance of the term 
would serve in that term until the 2014 general election at which time the 
position would be up for election again. 


• In the event the remaining district board members fail to either appoint or call 
for an election within the required 60 day period, the Sonoma County Board of 
Supervisors may appoint a person to the district board within 90 days of the 
date the district board is notified of the vacancy or the effective date of the 
vacancy, whichever is later, or order the district to call an election to fill the 
vacancy. 


When the Board appointed a replacement for Board Member McLean in May 
2009, we held a special meeting to do so.  That seemed to work well.    There is 
time available for this process and District staff is available to make it happen. 


 





		Meeting Date : June 2, 2011 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: June 2, 2011 
  
SUBJECT: NEW APPROACH FOR CONSIDERATION OF OTHER AGENCIES’ 
BOARD ELECTIONS 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Provide guidance to and/or a motion to approve a 
procedure for consideration of other agencies’ Board elections. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has received another election packet -- this one for the SDRMA Board of 
Directors -- due on September 16, 2011.   
 
The District seems to get election and/or nomination packets from various joint 
powers  agencies (or some other similar public structure) with which the District 
participates about once every other month.  Usually the candidates are not local.  
These elections are important, yet parsing through candidates at a Board meeting 
may not be the best use of our limited meeting time.   
 
Considering the above, staff is offering to review election packets, select candidates 
on behalf of the District, and include completed ballots for Board review and 
approval as part of the Consent calendar.  As always, the item could be removed 
from the Consent Calendar for discussion should any member of the Board wish to 
do so.   
 
The ballot for the SDRMA Board of Directors will be brought back for consideration 
on the July Agenda.  Depending on the Board’s guidance this month, it will either 
appear on the Administrative calendar or on the Consent calendar. 
 





